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uv Wallace crunches

the path betwean ve-

randahed Furneaux

Lodpge and the jerry

that juts o Endeay-

cr Inlet. a cimber hn-

EET over { b STER WA
ters of the Marlborough Sounds. Arche end
of its bleached planks worn by a chousand
salty feet, he stops and scans the bay, and 1t
all comes sweeping back, On Wednesday
December 31 1997 Wallace was working in
the bar ar Furneausx, a centurv-old lodging
in the onrer Queen Charloce Sound with no
road access but legendory New Year's par-
ties, and poured drinks for 1500 revellers
until well atter Anld Ling Syne had been
drunkenly warhled,

Just before 4am he was picking up rub-
bizh in the grounds when o couple asked if
he could take them to o nearby bach by wa-
et tax, By the time Wallace E'll[:"1]'ll:lj off from
the jetty in the small Naiad dinghy, he had
five passengers — the indtial couple, Havden
MMorresey and Sarah Dyver, Amelia Hope and
Fick Goddard — and a single man.,

Moo= p-;—_lr1p|r;_' will |'IE‘ Familiar wich the
cutline of what happened next. On reach-
ing the yacht Tamarack to drop oft Amelis
Hope and Rick Goddard, Wallace found Ben
smart and Amelia’s sister Olivia Hope, whoe
was upset all the berths on Tamarack were
raken and was anxious to return 1o shore
to find somewhere to sleep
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Ten years age Olivia Hope and Ben Smart
disappeared from the Marlborough Sounds.

Scott Watson was later jalled for their murders but,
as Mike White discovers, there are now mounting
doubts police got the right man. More sericusly,
challenges from key witnesses and even the father
of one of the victims raise questions as 1o how
VWatson was convicted m the first place.
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As they set off, the single man on the wa
ter taxi offered them a place to stay on his
boat, so Wallace dropped Olivia, Ben and
the mystery man off at this vacht, then de-
livered Morresey and Dyver to their bach.

1t was the last anyone saw of [7-year-nld
Oivia ar 21-vear-old Ben.

What Tollowed was one of Mew Zealamd’s
bigrest, most expensive and most contro-
versial investigations, leading to the arrest
of Scott Watson five monchs lacer and his
conviction in Seprember 1994,

1was a reporter on the local newspaper, The
Martharoush Exeress, that drought-scarred
summer and can remember firse hearing
about the case when Olivia's father, Gerald

Hope, went on radio insisting his daugh-
ter's disappearance wasn't some youthful
elopement.

By then I'd been a journalist for just over
a vear and there was undeniable excite-
ment having the counuy’s biggest story on
vour pateh, 1n the months that lollowed |
spent alot of time in the Sonnds, watching
podice seavches, helping the lamilies scour
the coastline for clues, watching the MNavy
survev the seabed and lnter pull a mysteri-
LS -LIII'_'I_I-{'“';_"‘I_ '|-I'I_'||:'| 1|"IL' I._IIL'“]_II‘I]'I.:i 1|:|.'3|. 1'I.I.I'IEL'-ZJ. LILEL
b b just a lose sail.

T dealt with the families often — mainlv
the Hopes — tiptoeing around their growing
grief while convincing myself I was helping

IGICWELLS

[AILIH




(1R
| WA

l""‘_]ll-,’!: |
*H 1l "I:I'. 11 |'.| q'|'

I|| i “ |||I||l||I |



by keeping the issue in front of people who
might remember something vical.

From January 12, when hiz boat was pub-
licly pulled from Waikawa Bay near Picron,
it was clear Scott Watson was the prime
suspect but neither he nore his family would
spealk. So we pot most of our information,
on and off the record, from the police. And
by the time he was arrested we were con
vinced he was che right man, When the
guilty verdict was delivered T recall, with
entharrassment now, walking around my
lounge punching the air in criumph — we'd
begn right; the jury had vindicated all our
faith in the police. '

But in the eight vears sinee, 've learnt
more about the case than T ever knew at
the time. And as | have, ['ve grown increas-
ingly uneasy about the way Watson was in-
vestigated, the paucity of evidence against
hirn and the eventual verdict. Many others

wneluding Gerald TTope — remain unsettled
about the case, and Watson's familv are still
fighting for his freedom, But despite a welter
of evidence supresting he may be innocene.
the authorities remain silent, legal appeals
rernain stalled and Watson, now 36, Temains
in Christchurchys Paparoa Prison.

= o March this vear, Auckland journal-
ist Feith Hunter published a dammning
book on the case, Trial by Trickery. 1t
was a detatled analvsis of events and
a stinging attack on those who'd put
— Wotson away, tncluding the police of-
fesr who led the éase, Bob Pope (now Dep-

uty Commissioner of Police), the legal team
who'd prosecuted Watson aned the judges in
the High Court and Court of Appeal.

The book had been commissioned by Pen-
ein Books following Hunter's 2003 tele
vision programme on the case, Murder on
rhe Blade?, which attracted nearly 550,000
viewers and won the best documentary cat-
egary at the following vear's New Zealand
Bereen Awards.

But after two legal opininns suggested
his claims could result in defamation suits,
Penguin dropped the project.

Convineed he could prove his al |L'g:1[5ﬁ:1§
by using police fles and court documents,
Hunter published the book himself, fully re-
alising the risks involved, including losing
his house if he was successfully sued.

Sitting in his Herne Bay home, his hair and
lzwns needing trimming, 65-vear-old Huncer
remenbers when the cose hroke being con-
vinced Watson was guilty. But as he learnt
more he became unsure, and in 2001, when
waiheke Tsland vachtie Mike Ealaugher lent
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Days after taking over the inquiry, Rob Pope
(above) decided Scott Watson was likely to

be the man water-taxi driver Guy Wallace
dropped off with Ben and Olivia. But Watson
was clean shaven and had short hair, whereas
Wallace said the mystery man was unshaven
and had wavy, medinm-length hair.

him a draft of his own book on the case, The
Marfharoush Mystery. Hunter realised what
a preat story it was and began work on his
documentary and later his book, hoping to
provoke a review of the case.

50 far Hunter's hook has sold 4000 cap-
ies but there has heen virtually no official
respomse from those he and others are ac-
cusing ol deception and deliberare distor-
ticrnr oof Eacts,

“Idon't think the justice svystem gives a
damn about gecting it right. To me, this is 5o
apen and shut, so black and white. so utterly
disgusting that | can't imagine any comimu-
ity lecting it go on, and 1 justhope [ live in
one that won't”

=Y n 2002 UMR Rescarch pelled 750
peaple and found 30 per cent believed
Scott Watson was guilty, By 2005 that
had dropped to 44 per cent and in
2007 it was 42 per cent, Te's hardly de-

—& cisive or definitive but seems tondi
cate a growing ill-ease, a national gur teeling
that somcthing might net be right.

Foremnst among concerns about the po
lice investigation is that they were rannel-
visioned.

Rob Pope, then a detective inspector, ar-
rived [reon Christchurch to take over the

rase, known as Operation Tam, late on Jan-
vary 5. At that stage police were following
informarion from water-taxi driver Guy
Wallace, who was adamant he dropped Ben
and Olivia off at a 38-40 foat wooden ketch
i twe masts), which he deseribed in detail,
i This was suppuorted by Havden Morresey,
who was also an the Naiad))

Wallace also desceibed the mystery man
as being unshaven and having wavy, medi-
um-length hair,

By Sunday JTanuary 11 Pope had decided
Seolt Warson, who was clean shaven and
had short hair on the night, and who owned
a 26-foot single-masted steel sloop, was
somehow likely to be this mvstery man,

Pope savs Watson began to “stick out like
cdogs halls™ hut couldne explain why, nther
than he appeared to have “the right sort ol
arenda and pedigree”

These included having a polive record,
supposedly being o drinker, dope smoker
and lomer, having a chip on his shoulder
and an explosive temper,

(Watson does have a record, mainly from
when he was a teenager, for burglary, thedt
and cannabis offences. There was also one
charge of pasaulc when he was 16 and two
of possessing an offensive weapon. He
served two short spells in jail in 1989 and



1), But he had incurred onlv one mi-
nor conviction in the eight vears before he
recame the police’s prime suspect in the
Hope-Smart case. )

By thar weekend. just a few days after
Avarrived in Marthorough and with hun-
dreds of witnesses still to interview. Fope
vas able o say: “We can be fairly cortain
that this keteh does not exise”

Diespite numerows possihle sighoings of
the distinctive ketch Wallace deseribed,
mehading some by experienced boaties, it
W= ‘I:“-L"L'[:i ".'I‘_"i_'n-' I'll] l"I.'J el,

Charter boat operators Ted and Evvonne
walsh. who insist they saw the mystery
keteh nn Mew Year's Eve at Furneaux and
rwir days later along with many of their pas-
sengers, remain hitter about how they were
mreared and cheie evidence discounted.

I belr it didin't matter what [ said or how
surcefully Tpueir, they weren't really willing
o listen” savs Ted. “You're told you don't
hiave a memory. How do vou make itop?”

A number of witnesses who subseguently
came forward with sightings, some afwhom
later gve evidencs tor the defence. were tald
their information wasnt wanted or their
starements were not followed wp,

Police, many from Canterbueye's Hatlands,
were often Hummoesed gecting to grips with
nautical nuances inherent in the case. [ spoke
COrCeLle 'l-‘.'i.U'lL‘.":H ".'-'|:'II..| llil]d. cl1l ILIFFIL'\L'I' |]i_5 AT
b was pulled out of the water [ne main-
tenance and was “on the hard”. The police:
man had ne dcdea whar the term means and
refused o write it down, believing it was n
salty vulgarity.

When Warson's self-built vache Hlade was
[ifted From Watkawn maring and crucked
Wondbourene Aie Force base for examing-
ton, it was the Arse signal he was a prine
suspect, A public demonisation of Watson
|IIL':_-_":.'IF1, witl [:-|J|iq_'::q_:|'lq1||, Linjru_r, little ti st
ramours abour him that began swirling, An
example was the story that when Warson's
hoat was seized its anchors were missing,
the inference being they'd been used to
weight divwn the bodies, Despite there be-
ing three anchors on the small boat, includ-
g e in plain view on the foredeck when
itwas hauled frony dhe water, Pope refused
to discuss whether police had found any,
allevwing speculation to continue, | -

T|:'I|;' Iji.'l:'.' H.Ilill'.ii.' WS .‘iL?'iL-':l_'d .:Il_".;H_'I AL []1{'
frst of nemerons searches of the homes of
Warson's parents, Chrs and Beverle and his
sister. Sandy. Again this led to a damaging
caricature of the whaole family and plenty of
rumours. I remember hearnsg lots of them:
Watson was 2 bad and violent bascard; his

farnily were damperons and weird, Ugliest of
all: Watson was sleeping with his sister

Pope rebuts supzestions police besmirched
Wiatson or his family behind the seenes Wi
desl with faces, nocinnuende and rumodre”

And, despite palice documents showing
Sandy Watson and her recently separanad
hushand were asked if she was sleeping
with Scott, Fope denies the incest rumour
same froms pelice and save he has no know -
vilge of his otheers ever passing it on.

Gut Gerald Hope is absobinely acdamant
there were rumours coming from palice,
including sugmestions of incese.

“There was ;l.h'.';aj.'n' whispering here and
there, dropping seeds into us abouwt this and
that like the incest stutfand the dysfunetion-
al family. “Bloody family, they're all bloody
cop-haters and anti-social tvpes’, that sortof
thing. And for us middle-class people who
don't run families that wav, [was suddenly
confromred with the facr there was smne-
body at Furneaus Lodge capable of donag
what was suppesed o hove happened. Thars
why [ remember saving, and 1 hate having
saied in, 10w can't have our kids back then
we'll nail the hastard'.”

At one stage carly i the tnvestigation,
while familv and friends were rraversing
the Soumds for signs of the Ben and Oliv
ta, pohiee pave ke searchers sis copivs of

A damning suspect prodfile on Watson, in-
cluding his police record, Police sav this
was on the understanding these would be
returned, Homvever, they foumd their wav
it the hands of the missing pairs parents
anad suthaeguiently oo the inedaa,

Hope believes the profle was distribuced
B rhe police with the knowledse s would
-:'\' L |-|i.|!-.‘-l'_'l.| 1171 I'l". '.-ill' "-li.'.lf'l:':'IL'I'h — L3 L,'IZI.iI'II_I'I' |:|'|I_'
Farnils vicw ol Watson, He suvs ot cortamly
croated “the responses vou'd evpect Jrarenls
wosld e

Prespite subsequently saving than “really,
DU course was set froms that dav™, alier in-
rerviewing Warson o Januaey 12, Pope pub-
Liely maintained che fieciom Watson wasn'T
nsuspect only awimess. s a result medin
and others contnued to spread tanuendo
ahone Wirson withour the rightened re
sbricrion ut :-1L|.~-;.|_'-{Jir.'q' rules 1t .'a|_1|_1|:.' i
amvone facing charges.

The Watson family were convineed ef
Forts were amde o isolate them rom che
Ficrton commanity, Neipghbours Bervl and
Paul Karcoa remember an ofheer telling
them conndenriallv tHar police kinew Seare
Warson had killed Ben and Oliviaand it was
best they didn't associate wich them

Selected medi woere privy to police think-
g and aenoes, A The Marfborouyh Express

wr sy pported the police, trosced their merh-

“To me, this is so open and shut, so black
and white, so utterly disgusting that Ican't
imagine any community letting it go on,
andIjusthopelliveinone that won't.”

Auckland journalist Keith Humter,
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aff a5 to where thev'd be searching. 1 knew
the night before Warson was arresced chat 1t
wigs going to happen, allowing us to marshal
resources and have stories ready to go.

Police ar times appear to have used hean-
randed tactics in interviews, The transeript
of a nearly three-hour intervies with key
witness Guy Wallace on January 11 makes
disturbing reading as he is repeatedly ac-
cused of Tving and covering up, with scrong
sugEestions he was himself somehow in-
volved with the couple’s disappearunce,

Amelia Hope, Olivia's sister, was rieducesd
to tears after interviews, according 'to her
father: “she had o hell of a grilling at one
stage by police.”

Al the time, Gerald Hupe thought his
daughter was jusc emaotional, but havinge
SEET I.'II"I".'n-' HlEl:,"' W OO R5-4N 0 F.l'l[lll."'l.l FIZIF L CIL-
tional effect during the teial, he now he

lieves she was placed under huge duress.

l he Hope-Smart case was

nne of the countey's hip-
rest news events of mod-
BTN Thmnes — P attrac brve

viony peaple murdered in

— thi glorions Marlborough
Souncds, LA00 potential witnessces, yet no
Podies, weapons or obwious crine scene.

The _r:-uhHr_' and meedia interest was an-
precedented, the pressure on Pope and the
police w find che killer, enormous.

Bur by mid-April. nearly tour months into
the il‘l*.'-:.‘r&tia.!ﬂtit.r]ll. police still didn’t have
anyone aboard the Naind, the lst pen]_'lh_‘ tir
see Ben and Olivia, sdentifeing Scort Wat-
sontas the myvscery man who offered them
a place on his vacht,

By this time Guy Wallace, the crucial svis-
mess, had been shown Wartson's ]ﬂmnl at
least three times — by police and v a TV
reporier. Each time he'd satd Watson wasn't
the mvstery man.

i April 20 police tried a different pie-
tre af Warson in a montage of eight phoros
shown to wirnesses for idencification pur
poses. The new photo showed Watson halt-
wiy through a blink, mimicking a descrip-
tion of the mystery man as having hooded
CVES, Wi llaee said be beliowved pl‘lfrtul -
ber three Cof Watson) looked like the man
he'd transporeed an the MNaiad, However, he
added that ar the rime the person had facial
crowth and longer, bushy, wavy hair that
wais marg unkempt, and a fringe.

A photo of Watson on the night shows
he had shore, ddv hair, 2 receding hairline
in the front and was clean shaven, Wallace
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Nearly four months into the investigation

. police tried a different picture

- of Watson in amontage of eight photos shown
to witnesses for identification purposes.

The new photo showed Watson halfway
through ablink, mimicking a description

of the mystery man as having hooded eyes.

also noted it was the eves that stood our for
him more than anyvthing — but the photo ot
Woiabson was an uonatural CHILY, t::?lu:__',hl [t
way theough a blink.

Anocher crucjal witness, Furneaux bar
mamnaper Roz MoeNeilly, also idensifed We-
son frmn the sage montage, including the
blink phota. as the person most like the mys-
tery man she and Wallace had seen drink
ing bourbon at the bar because of the way
his eves lnoked,

LA noteworthy aside is that Warson's spirit
of climce was rumy and hed been drinling this
carlicr in the evening. raising the quesnon that
if lve was the mawvstery man at the bar, why he
would suddenly switch to bourbon®)

But MeNeilly also insisted the man she re-
membered had longer haie {as well as pre-
viously deseribing him as having stubble .
Police told her the person she'd identified
could have had a haireut and cleaned him-
E'-I;,"]J- l]l'_1. HL.IE llllﬁ_! pllll;:l‘ll_:l lH]{L:!'I Tk |.|'I1_' 'IIiH'l'II.
clearly shows Warson was already short-
hatred and shaven. In a sworn affidavic
MelNeilly now savs she was never shown
this photo of Watson taken on a vachr just

before he went ashore to Furneaux. she
hrst saw it atter the trial and immediate-
Iv reslised Watson was not the man she'd
siown at the bar

“I thouwght [ was helping catch a mue-
derer — now | feel like I've put an innocent

man in jail”

1 l vers before the Crown apened
its case in the High Courr ar

g | all porenrial jurors, access

Wellingron inJune 19991t wis
working to give itself the best
chance of winning, 1t verred

ing thedr police records trom the Wanganul
Computer, which allowed it to potentally
challenge anyvone with convictions., While
rhis APEars [ 31;1]'.-]'.*1*11 Fr-e'{ln-:m |].' in rrials,
the overall Tairness ol the exercise has been
challenged by Huneer and other critics,
Underche Juries Ace. only chose with se-
rics convictions are barred {from serving,
When the defence appealed against rhe
verting, Justice Richard Heron ruled this
wis commonly practised and it was “in
the mverall interests of jusoice to have per-



sons without conviclions sitting as jurors”
as long as the defence had the same infar-
mation. Thus, the prosecution was able oo
weed out anvone who may have spent time
in prison and mav have been sceptical about
the crucial Crown evidence that Watson
had stunningly admirted his guilt while in
custody, (More on this lacer)

For the first 11 weeks of the rial the pros-
ecution brought ncearly 300 witnesses in
trone of the jury. While perfectly entitled
to. this had che effect thar for nearly three
months the jurors heard onlv the relent-
|ess Crown case ocher than defence cross-
caamination of witnessos,

Gerald Hope, who sat [hrrnl'r_',h much of the
trial, now feels very uncomfortable ahout
the way the Crown ran the case. One of the
cvents he remembers that provokes his un-
casiness wis a prolonged examination where
nis davghrer Amelia was asked about rings
shea and Clivia had vecently exchanged. This
was drawn out uncl Amelia finally hroke
devwn in rears,

“Itwas pure theatre and the whaole thing
must have had a huge cmotional etfect on
the jurors. Ar the time i wrecked us emo-
tinnally because we didn't know that was
coming up.”

Hope now feels ifwas cmational manip-
ulation, *We don't understand the law but
o certainly didn't seem to have anvching
ondo with evidence, 1t juse made us [FHope
and wife Jan] a0 angry and increased our
dislike for the defendant. 1 imagine it had
that effect on the jury as well”

When rhe delence opened its ease, War
son's lawver Mike Antunovic was cut down
in his opening address by che judpe. who
refused to allow him to reflect on evidence
already presented,

While some lawvers spoken to apree wirch
the Judpe’s action, another of Watsen's
CLTTrent ]u“‘:‘.'l'!'.ﬁ. Greg King, describes it
as “one of the worst judicial interventions
T'ver evel seen”,

Jusrice Heron lad |1w~l|1 imvolved in the case
Lo betore the real. In Moy 19498 he permit-
ted an application from Pope to bur Watson's
soat and his sisters house, In doing so he a6
cepted the veracity of numerous statements
b Pope as o Watson's character, plans, sp-
pearance and actions, many of which were
never used in the rial because they could
never be proven. [t s unclear lhoaw such se-
cret” informarion may have prejudiced Jus-
rice Heron, but las linal words wo the juny may
b indicative:

“Irwould of course be of considerable ben-
efiv il vou could put this dread ful event in the

“Ithought Iwas helping catcha
murderer —now Ifeellike I've put
aninnocent man in jail.”

Fumeaux bar manager Roz McNeilly.

lifes of cuar country te Analioe by a verdict ac-
cording tolaw but only in accordence wich the
aaths and affirmacions VOl have taken”
How the jurors ook this nobody knows, bat
they may have concluded thar only 2 @il
verdict could pdve “Analioe”™ to the case.

he ['lr'llit"l' arud Crivwn case

was thar Warson roturned
fromm the paroy at Furneauy
around gam on the warter
taxd driven by Guy Wallace,

— invared Faer and Olivia back
to his vacht, then murdered them.

Watsan had originally told police he re-
murned ta his vachr Blade alone, about Zam

thaugh, not wearing a watch, he couldn't
be sure His lawvers cross-examined an-
other water taxi detver, Donald Andersen,
whi'd told police he taok a lone man to a
vacht that had a name reminding him of an
adged weapon, so the delence hased s case
om this evidence.

Severa people on the twao vachts rafted
up with Blade recall Watson arriving hack
o1 [is boar, olwiowsly alone, and loaking for
CRMpAny m concinue pareving with.

Sothe delence was conbdent this prov-
ed Warson didn't come back with Guy
Wallace, Ber and Olivia as the prosceution
Wik arEuing.

However, at the very end of che three.
mentlh ttal, on the second day of the Crosen's
closing address, che prosecution announeed
Watsan had actually made two trips back o
his vache — ar Zan with Donald Anderson
then again st dam with Guv Wallace. Ben
and Olivia,

The defence savs it was stunned by this
“rwo-trip theory”, not having understoomd or
foreseen the Crown argument of Watson's
mevements, Tt could be forgiven far this,
Earlier, the Crown had appeared o chal-
lenge the 2am trip with Anderson and not
once had it presented any evidence from
the 500 witnesses abour seeing Watson go
pack to shore between 2am and 4am. None
of the water-taxi drivers had been ques-,
tioned about this. Nor had anv of the se-
curity guards on the jecty that night or any
nther revellers st Furmeaus Lodre, Conse-

quently, the defence hadn't asked anyv witc-
nesses about it eicher.

[respice a total lack of visual evidence of
Warson's having made chis trip, prosecu-
ror Faul Davison QO insists an incident an
shore invelving Watson accurred around
Jam and thus sheer logie sugoests he must
have returned from his vachr at some stage
after his 2am trip out to Blade, Bur this miss-
ing link was never tested by either side as it
was anly clearly raised atter all witnesses
had finished giving cvidenee.

(Keith Hunrer argues that Watson — wlg,
remember, didn't have a wareh so was
taessing ar times — in fact did return to his
boar alone bue ar was after 3.300m and not
Jam as he'd estimared?)

Davisor, who labels Huner's eriticisms
of the prosecution as “totally misconeeived,
mischievous” and “ill-informed™, savs the
issie was “nore than adequately dealt with
ane 1just can’t imagine that competent de-
Fenee commse | wouldn't see 1t just as clearly
as T saw 10 and evervhbody else saw it

Aike Antunovic responcs: With the great-
esr Tespect to Mr Davisan QC. that's just ut-
ter rubbish, The twa-trip theory was o major
depnr‘rure frowns the Crown case and there
wis ust nooway we could foresee "

The issue was one of the grounds for the
defence appeal o the Court of Appeal but
was rejected, with the coart saving there
hiad been “extensive ceoss-oxamination®
of this and associated issues. The defence
L].[‘I'LE. 1][]1'."1“!'\- 'l.'.'l'IH ]‘l':l'n-'t‘ sl I,ll.l'-ll:,‘.Ll | |EI:_" ot tran-
seript continue o dispure this amd plan to
L5 [t as3a !.h'"l'l.ll.lr'll.] I'-':IIT 'I-'|_|T1.|"|{'r |I.,"=_'|"i_|..| .Ij-:_"[il:'l-ﬂ.

Whartever the reality, it seems [:-i;:::rrl;; that
such a crucial picce of evidence ahour Wat-
s0N's movements wasn't thoroughly can-
vassed during the trial, Despite there being
1500} pocential witnesses thar night, abso-
lutely nobody saw him recurn to shore,

If vou believe the Crown theory, howe then
tidd he ger there? After months of investig-
tinns, police were obviously unahle to find
amvone whao'tf taken him, One would assume
iF he swam, those who saw him lazer mighe
notice, 11 he used his own dinghy, why
wouldn't he have returned init, ond how
did he gee ot back, given the Crown argued
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he went back to Blade with Guy Wallace?
1Fhe used someone else's — might they not
have noriced and reported iy

Why did nobody in the hoats beside Blade,
fiear him leave te po back to shore, hear or
notice him later retzring on the Guy Wal-
lace water taxi, or hear him board his vacht
with Ben and Olivia?

Davison put it to the jury in his closing
address thus: “Was i just hitehing 2 ride
wich a |‘.';'|.~.:~i1|;_{ biaar? Who knows? There
wis o dinghy arrached to the back of his
hewat. There were other dinghies around 1t
was a short rows 1t was a shoro teipoin any
<o, Does it martters” '

For those who value certainny when some-
o 15 accused of something as seriogs as
muarder, Davison's words to the Jury are

lictle shore of chilling,

wowhat were the erucial pieces
af evidence Warson was con-
victed nnd
Firstly there was the "blink
photo” Wentbeation by Guy
Wallzce, from which he now
resiles, Bock in Picton working as g carpen-
ter, Wallace is biteer abour how he believes
lie was pressured by police and feels il
he idenribed Watson trom che montage, in-
sisting he woasn't the man he dropped Ben
and Olivia off wich.

1 feel T've been shafred by the cope. as far
as I'm concerned Scotts innocent, abw AVS
has bean,”

[dly relling a &igarette while admiring a
sprinkling of snosw on the highese peak in
che Sonencls, W Stokes, Wallaee savs hard v
i day goes by when he doesnt chink abowt
the case, and still insists he delivered Ben
ancl Civia to a keteh.

The police case rested on Wallace heing
absolurely right sbout the man he dropped
CHivia and Ben offwith — yer, despite o
hoating bockground, utterly wrong about
the very detailed description of the kesch
R said he rosk them o,

“1 travel to work on water every day and
vons're always looking — alwavs lnoking for
that keteh, Whar I feel shithouse about is
that T dropped them off and | had the op-
portunity not todrop them off”

The second crucial piece of police evi-
denee s the so-talled secrer or protecred
wialnesses — eriminals who cloamed Wat-
son confessed to them in prison. Secret
witness A recanted his restinony i 2000,
saving le'd lied.

Secrer wirness B claims Warson — who'd
been warned abour jailhouse snitches and
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“Ifeel'vebeenshafted by the cops.
As far as I'm concerned Scott’s innocent,

always hasbeen.” '

Water-taxi driver Guy Wallace (pictured back at Furneaux Lodse): one of the last wilnesses

to see Ben and Olivia,

lept his silence chreughout the investiga-
tion, even 1o his pritriend, wlho was secretly
reporting o the paolice — told hin (a virtual
stranger !t about murdering Ben and Olivia
Watson never even shared a cell with wit-
ness I The “confession™ was supposediy
given through the peephole in Watson's ool
door. A man with an extensive and violent
criminal histowy, witness B received a phone
and car from police and an arpuablv lighe
sentence on other charges he faced.

I et secret witness Bonce when e cune
it Five Aarlboraugh Express agitated about
liis position as an informant in the cose. He
tever consented oo pooon che record with
arvehing, but suthice wosay, using basic jour-
madism ericeria foe credibilicg 'm nor suee
I'dd have been comfortable belicving whar
he wld me anyway. Rob Pope defends the
wse of the rwn Jailhouse informants despite
there bemng stromg imternational apposition
o evidence from such sourves being allowed
intrials, He says police were obliged to use
the infermation becanse it was “relevant
and contributory”, and icwas up o the jury
to decide i0IE was trustworthy

The final and perhaps strongest piece of
evidence was owo hairs Tound on a tiger-
patterned blanket on Watson's baat that
wore matched o Olivia by DINA

About 400 steands of hair were taken from
the blanket, An nicial examination of them
was carricd out by ESR forensic scientisi
Susan Vingner on January 22 1998, She iso-
latisd 11 that appeared 1o have roots char
might give a DNA analvsis (none did) but
teund no Blonde strands that matched G-
wia's haar, which she'd seen in newspaper
photos, On March 7, after samples of Olivia's
hair were sent to the laborstory, the tiger-
blanker strands were again examined. MVost
were shert and dark. This dme Vintiner found
blonde strands — one 130 long and the other
2acm — which she'd overlooked before, Tests
shonved rhess ware fram Olivin or someone
fromy her maternal blood line. Vinoner had
shortly before heen cxamining sample hai
r-FIJT!I'l [.Hh'iﬂ.. 1':'||.-'.-."I:| !-.'_IJIJ'I |:IIL'r ]'I_I:_I-]'I_'_l‘l_' 17 LR
cccasions, leading w suggestions there may
have been accidental contamination of the
tiger-blanket hair There was also never any
read explanation for g mysterious Lem slicin
the bag holding Olivios sample hair, Vintiner
only offering that she may have inadvertently
cut the bag while using seissors w open the
envelope it was in, Frustratngly, no count had
been taken of how many strands of Olivia's
b were collected from her home, so nobady
could check if anv were missing,

without the blande scrands of hair even



Rob Pope concedes 1o would have been Jdif-
el to bring a
events at ESR leave many unsettled about

case against Watson, The

wlhiether even rthe hair evidence can be
vrusted, Few tests were ever done for Ben's
Briarr as 10 was too similar to Watsan's.

lale Mow swings on g meoring
i Waikawn By near Picton,
ket tidy T Chris Watson bl
rarely used. The unforrunare
oy is that Ben's parents,
John and Mary Smart (who
chose not to speak on the record tor this
storyh, have shifted o the bay and can see

Blade, the vacht their son was supposcdly
miurdered on. cvery oime they gaze out to-
wards the spectacularly beautiful Sounds,
where foresced ridges steike up from shel-
tered havs,

When vou climb aboard Blade o couple of
things are immediatelv apparent.

The first is the lack of space to sleep, Apart
froom Witson's berth at the front. there is only
a thin seat on the right of the saloon which
would fit one person. There 15 a potential
I'1t'|'1]'| R LE'IL" |J|..|"|1.!r :‘-iil]‘l.' U‘I.[]'IL" .‘i-l‘||I:||:I1'l il:-:.'HL'I
drop the table deosen bt this isn'r alble to be se-
curely fastened and there s no squab to cover
1, meaning a very uncomlortable nighr,

S0 presuming it was Watson who imvited
Ben and Olivia on to his vache, untess he in-
stantly thowgzhe while on the warer taxi that
he'd murier them, where did he imagine
they might sleep? Would e have given up
ks cnwn bed? Winild ome of them have dossed
on the leor? Or outsde in the cockpit? Or
twisted themiselves around the eable which
dide't have a squab on 7 Perhaps the nn-
swer toone of these 15 ves but even Gerald
Hope, who's been on Blode. adimics 1ts not
1|]\'.' L'.]I:Hj l:l.I- E'?I.'.liﬁl |]i.:"i IJ..:I.i.l"l:H.L'l.' WIER |i|'-|l;,"i} R}
have been happy staving on.

Presuming they did st on board. was Wat-
son really prepared o murder them, and pos-
vz tender widch

"-.]r‘-|.1.' Taps ¥livi; 1, W hen (1]
— less than 30cm — separated them trom
EHL _'-'.'!l:']'t'l b weas iy 1y t, ard whichk had
nine people on board? Sound wouldn't hove
been the anly problem — any movement on

vachts is easily transferred when rofted up. If

Watsen did overpower Ben and Olivia there,
somehow nobody Just cenfimetres away on
the other boat nooeed anvthing — meluding
Oivia desperacely scrabbling ar the harch.
tscratches on the inside of the hatch were
kew Cronamn evidence — sew page 58,

Mavhe he moved before murdering them?
But Slade’s clanking engine is in the en-
trance of the saloon — mere contimetres

Was Watson really prepared to nmurder Ben
and Olivia, and possibly rape Olivia, when only
a fender width —less than 30cm —separated
themtmmtheyachthewasheduptu,wtuch
had nine people onboard?

[rom anvone steeping there, 185 incredibly
sy inside the coubin and it's diftheoln 1o
imagine anyone sleeping theough ics being
srarted, mven there was insuthcient wind
for Watson to sail awny,

There are possible answers o all these
seeming logicalitivs, The jurv who went
alsoard Blade must have consiclered all
the facrs and theories. However, enough
questions remaain aboutr what happened
that night o stll cause many people seri-
ous doubis.

aly Pope has heard all these
things betore. He hasn't
read Keith Hunter's bonk
|:|'JIL" SEN1E |.'|'I'E' I:'IIIII'IJE'!'“I'I'I.I."I".-

cary copy Hunter forward

A g him bhack to the suchor,
unopened) but clatms there's nothing new
i Pressed, he savs this understamding
comes feom “a couple of conmments 've
heard around che place. No ane’s given me

any grear deail. They just sav it seems 1o

be the same old same ald”

Mot having a clear knowledge of what's

in Trial by Trickery doesn’t stop Pope from

Chris Watson inside his son's boat Blade.

challenging Hunter's anthority o eriticise
the investigation, repeatedly mdicating the
praper place for the ease oo be heard was in
the courts — and this one has gone as far as
the Privy Council,

“Tryving to elevate that book as something
W, 50T L‘l']li['l!.f htil]":]i'l'l."_'._ LI |:ILI|ZII|.|:\." cOon-
Lrary Lovery c}ln:r-u]'lj.' considered courn es-
tinony, very strongly challenged hoth in rhe
detence and prosecution. And chen to acru
ally sav ajury that's been charged with find-
g gutl or innocence is weong, on the basis
af a person’s view, looking from a distance.
He has the luxury and comfort of sitting in
a lounge or in froncol a computer jand sav-
ingz], ‘Ooh, thar’s not right’. or “They've ob-
viously stuffed up hery — thev've done this,
chev'vie done that, Ie's done withour any
form of accouncabilicy,

*L don't know this fellow Hunter from a
I'l.:':'l' ‘IZIF"H:IHFI; |'Il,,' I'I'IH:-.' i:"-l_' ".'|'l|'_'” il'lli_'l'll EIZ H'II'I_j I'I'I_l;t
being well intentoned doesi't necessarily
mean that o whole legal and investigative
apparacus has to knese-jerk toche tact he has
a view, And chat view is lormed, rightly or
wrangly, on informanon the police and the
palice alone have gathered. 5o swwhat's npew?
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He has o view — evervhady bas g viewl”

Having relused o read the book, Pope can
be formiven for net realising what new evi-
dence Huater has sathered. Dot his position
also seems wo deny anvone the righe o say the
Temal svstem can et things wrong and pro-
vide supporting evidence. Tn 2006 former
High Court judge siv Thoamas Thorp sug-
pested 200 New Zealanderss were wrongly im
prisoned when he called tor an independent
body to review miscarrioges of justice,

And perhaps the distance Pope refers to,
which Hunter bias bad for chie sis o veses he's
investigated and reviewed every available
document on the case, allines o dispassion
are assessment, nor influenced by the pres
sure, drama and eomotion of cicher a podice
mwvestigarion or courtroom trial conducted
under intense media scretiny

Thue generatly cheery and likeable Pope, a

career cop and perhaps the country's hest-

works as an engineer at the local fish fac-
pary while wifte Reverly is o cook at g wa-
terfront cafe in Ficton. They ve got five
serandchildren, tao cats and a vere garden
I'||'_|-i_'] r|r|;'r1'[' Tl'IIL‘ j_fl'l]'l I’._'.Hrl.‘l.'h 'II'II'IIZ ]'I'II!I'.I_'|' WA ||.1
caricdature them as.

There's nnehanee of retirement soon; the
cosl of thetr sons case prevencs thac, (Ware
sont’s legal aid Bill is s6ill the highestin New
Zealand at 5623740 — but his current legal
g|1:a||+_'r1:.w:; arie o ]mh“r's_'.' Mirglescl)

They've never dooe the sums on whar ics
cost chiem fancially bueics been 2 thousands
and thousands™. savs Chrs, *rou wuscdo "

The cost obviously gees much turther, Bev
wWarson, who addresses every lettor to her
SO0 4 "Heott Watson, Innocent Man®, savs
the case has wrecked their Tives.

When Scott was arresced and ther
howse searched repeatedly, then bugged,

thew clumg to the belief thar reason would

“Scott’s not, and we’re not, PR men. 1 often
wonder if we'd have beenbetter off hiring -
aPRmanthan alawyer.”

Scott’s father Chirls Watson,

Lnown ane, ATEICS i dierise ]'-l‘J]iL‘L'--:"]‘:-L‘ ak Twir
i clear progrer process s been Sllowed and
save Hunrer's accusations need torbe proven
with the same scruting as the coures,

Pope savs b weom oo shy froom any LIEEy
inre the case, which 1= what Huncer and
others are secking.

“Bura new mguiry on whar? Theres noth-
g to hide abour this investigation. 1 any-
thing its probahly e of the mast publicly
trawled mnguires r recent thimes, At what
point do vou say stop?™

When the truth’s been umaovered, savs seon
Warson's father Chres, awho for L0 vears has
guiethy and meticuboushy dissecred the police

an prosecition cuse BEninst Tvis s,

arn in Connecticur, Chris
Watson shifted to New Fea-
larnd ar the age of 12 and got
inte satling when a neigh
oy in Chreistchuareeh boughs

a small vachr. Larer the tam-
v took to sca for 12 vears, sailing around
Mew Zealand, stopping ro work Tor six
moinths then moving on. Iowas here Seort
oot his lowe for boats, buving his first vache
at 201 belore building Blade on the family's
Picton proporty.

Chris Warson twened a0 in March and
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eventually prevail.

“We thoughr there would be someaone
with a brain — some stable, normal person
amiog them.” says Bev.

Gy the end of the trial chey were con-
vimeed seom wanld be scgquitted, The prison
epards had browght in his elocthes and his
Fivwvers had a bottle of wine ready.

Anel s it's poneon, thetr hoapes raised ae
the Cowrt of Appeal, theo che Prive Couwn
cil.only oo be croshed cach fime,

v et pired of fecling like vour stom-
achs dragging o the Hoor” savs Chres. “You
secp plodding on and vou hope that each
pione vau come arcund a corner vou'll find
sonelody that’s honest.”

Chris Watson s the quigt back-store to
the headlines Ben and (ivia have gen-
crated ever stee they went missing. But
he'e acutely aware that whatever he savs,
penple will potentially dismiss it os paren-
ral prejudice.

While David Bain had elogquent ex-all
BElack Joe Karam championing his cause,
sentt Watson has porents who were viewed
with suspicion trom day one,

“So ['ve approached this from what |
could prove,” Chris savs. *[t's no use getting
Scort’s story because evervthing he's sand
chev've said is a lie 5o 've worked on the

theory vau cut him right out of the equation
ane o on what vou can prove.”

Aany people ask why Scotr Watson bas
never spoken publicly other than to sav
Syondte wrong " abter the jury announced its
verdier ad, “This is a bloody Parce; T'moan
innocent man”, when given a 17-vear non-
parole sentence.

Bt what [would Scotc] say?” argues

Chris, P not invelved, | went to the thing
o Mew Yesars Evae | oawent albaonid m brigsi-
ness, the J?l'J]i.LZL' canwe and ook me away”. Do
ol e tooweeep and wail and de emotional
things for the press? They can get staffed,
Anvehing he save will be misconscroed. muas-
used or pickad over”

lMublic perceptions of Seatt Watson's char-
acter have not improved while he's been
13 prrasnit Tis marriage (nesy over b aiwd has
sending lewd pletures from o cellphone (a
second case attributed o him was hogus)
e weon hion lieele public sympathy

“Trs bad PR admics Chris, “Buc be's no,
and we're not, PR men. 1 often wonder if
we'ld have been better off hiring a 'R man
f]'l.:l'l'l H| |...L'|.'.'_'|.'l'r..I

And thar’s o persistent issue — time and
aerain people will say they don't know if
Watson killed Ben and Olivia but hes o
|\l.'.'ld. ]:lH.HliJI'-ZJ. :il]}"l.‘.'.'i}' ;'lr'l'ii i1.l;‘1 |_1r'§_2l|:_'ll.'||_:||:'|' .li'l."'.-
rer he's in jail.

Daspice his quict manier and attempts m
pUrSLe Scort’s case with “the utmost rea-
somableness™, Cluris Warson has frequently
conlronted the police who turned his fam
Hvme [ite over,

“Whar else con vou do? Be submissive
and be a sheep? That's what they want, |
want them to admic thev stutfed it up, The
|1|l.'ﬂ.l.|.i!|i.'.' Lin 1.]'H.' _iLLl.I.:.’."L'."' I.]IIIL"‘iI'Ill. CRLTIE 101 C1d
any more — t's extremel distastetul, 1 want
those prople to ndmit their justice svstem
i:‘1 L"I':'ll_'l- lI|J||-.|'II,,"'|I'II,,"I' 1 '.".'i” Ili]['l-]_:ll;‘.l'l o il i:‘-i

another marceer”

X twillif Mike Antunovie and Greg
Eing have anything to do with it,

b Lo 2000 the Court of Appeal reject-
ed o number of arguwimens from War
son's defence, saving ic was satished

—a there had been no wrong decision
in law nor that a miscarriage of justice had
been demonstrated, bur Antunovic armly
disapgrees with that judgement.

He wets anery recalling the case and be-
heves e indead one of New Zealand’s
sreatest miscarriages ol justioe, “And §won's
change my thinking till the dav [ die”

Fing, anather of the country's highest-
profile defence lawvers, joined Watson's le-



gal team when i applicd w the Privy Coun-
gil for leave to have the case heard theee.
This was declined. with no reasons given.
“I think it's ane of the most guestion-
able convictions entered by a New Zealand
court, When I look ar the evidence T don't
think there was enough to convict him. In
fact T think the opposite, 1 think there was
a very substantial body of evidenee which
preeclided him from being the killer”
Among many concerns King has 1 what
he calls the “shifting sands” of the prosecu-
tion case when it claimed Warson made a
second trip ashore 1o Furneaus.
¥ “;T]I-:l':."'!: not one skerrick of evidence to
shiow e did chat, So what vou're doing is

als it would be ditheult to sav the same of
Act Party leuder Rodney Hide,

Hide savs Hunter’s book is the most shock-
g rhing he's ever read and is loblwing MPs
tor bake nceion, “If it was another counery’s
legal svstem I'd find s amazing, Bus the
thought ics about Mew Zealand is unbeliew-
ahlo. I don't see how vou can read thas ool
and not be shocked o vour core”

Hide says the 1ssue goes hevond Warson;
he questions the entire Jepal system. And
when the serious accusations made apninst
top bigures such as Depury Police Com-
missioner Bob Pope remain unanswered,
people’s faith in the justice svstem is left
in ratrers, the M says.

Olivia’s father Gerald Hope insists that
if he could be convinced Watson was not
guilty, he’d work to free him.

bringing it a veedict based on pure specula-
tion and puesswork, That's noca trial, thac's
awirch-huont”

King helped defend Vicky Calder in the
poisomed-professor case alsn headed by Roh
Pope. Calder, accused of poisoning her for-
mer Jover, was acguitted at o second trial.
And E{ing 2AVS fhie sace p|‘3|:i[”1' patrern of
tunnel vision evident there was repeatcd
i Walson's case — “lovusing on your per-
son and finding the evidence to fit the per-
son eather than sicking back and finding the
person thar firs the evidence™,

Pope dismisses this, soving police had 130
potential suspeces, although Watson quickly
hecame the key one.

Eing savs New Zealand's justice system
ien’t effective at redressing miscarriages of
justice, but within the nexe vear he'll pros-
ent what could be Watson's lust legal shot
— & petiticon Lo the Governor-General who.
i consaloation wiath the Minstry of Justice,
can recommend o pardon or thar the case he
referred back to the Court of Appeal.

“I10%% easy 1o be seen as some blesding-
beart liberals, Bot all T'm saving s any
convicoion has to be able to withstand the
¢losest serutiny. To me that's what ‘heyond
reasongble doubt’ means. The families of
Ben and Olivia ard entitled o po oo bad ar
nighe 10O per cent satished the right per-
son has been locked up. And i this case [
don't think there's evidence to show Scott
Watson was the right person.”

While some may indeed cancature law -
vers such as King as bleeding. heart liber-
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"This is more serious than anything [ can
nnaginge and the silence from our justice

system is cruly deatening”

cross Cook Strait in Barl

borough, where lage froses

threaten the grape vines

that smother s valleys

and Support its economy,

Gerald Hape is oqually
amazed nobody has responded o Keith
Hunter's book or challenged his allegarions
of wrongdoing,

“IEs d pronvoring resd, He's presented some
really searching evidence and raised o lot af
really powerful questions and it's been done
systematically, coherently and objectively.”

When Scont Watsan was found guilty
Haope believed police had the right man.
bur his confidence has been shaken in the
vears since as he's reflected on how they
and the court process worked.

“What we ot was a conviction but we
never wot the truth, And that's the part that
stull reallv rips me up. At che end of the day
wo're o further ahead than we were on the
frsc or second or third of January ol 1904,
I circumstantial evidence so vou're hay-
i o helieve a stoey, And pares of thae sto-
ry are shallow — ncredibly shallow. T viu
wegve the wiole story together and accepr
e version of it vou have to po olong wich a
rightlul and justibed conviction. But there
are parts ol i rthar jusr don' pel”

Hope says he now feels extremely unhap-
o abouat the way the police acted,

“You trustin the institunion of the police
ro give vow the absolute truch, You don't es-
pect it ta be interpreted and pven tovou in
dilured form or selectively.

W had high expectations that 3 man of
Rob Pope’s experience would be able to get
to the bottom of what happened. And he ap-
peared ta der thar — to get a resule. But i was
a story that was woven around the suspect.

“I'm not saving [Scort Watson] is not
guilty. What T'm saving is let’s clear up the
doubt”

T hufp do this, Hope wanrs o sit down
with Svort Watson and hear him express his
absolute innocenceand how he feels — some
thirg he believes is a simple reguest (fand one
Chris Witson savs he's open to), Hope msists
thae if he could be convineed Warson was not
ruiley, he'd work to free him.

However, thar would leave Hope and the
ather family members atterly berett as tar
as koowing what did happen to Olivia and
Ben, and with 10 vears of the mest extreme
cmotions all tor nothing What's warse, it
wotld mean che ome chanee to find our whar
really happened and w de something abour
it in those Arst davs of January, when thes
were searching for a2 ketch, had been lost
forever. And that almost unthinkable pros-
pect is ane Hope admics has made him re-
lucrant to go dosw s the path of considering
police may have ot the wrong man, as it
wotld leave the families knowing onlv that
Olivia and Ben had been abdoced and dis-
appearcd. never to be seen again.

“Tuat if that was the ouch vow'd have o ac-
cepl it Because vou'd racher know the orarh
than something that was fabricared and
wrong. [eould deal with thuat berter than Wae-
som being in there if the convierion is unjusti-
fied, hecawse T'm not acall unsympacheric”

Hope, just re-elected as a Marlborough
Mhsteice counecillor, recently come aoross
photos of Olivia. “And vou look through
from the baby to cthe photograph on the
Tarrarack and vou chink, a whole life just
disappeared Like that, Very, very hard to
come to rerins with, Thas whole loss s to-
tallv unresolved.

"I ] wake upin the morning and sudden-
lv something Hoods back inoo my mind or
when we go o sleep at night — | iuse have 1o
pull a blind down otherwise vou den't sleep
— the 'what iF seenarios — vou just have 1o
lank it off, vou dont zo there.

*The one thing that always remains is chac
we never found the trruch. We thoughe we
woltld, We thoughe the process we were go-
ing through would actually be the crwth, Bur
it hasn't been. That's the hardest pare” +



dRbSE CEILH Y

Watson’s Yacht
Blade: | -~/ 1cience

Ketch vsSloop

Watar-taa drrver Guy Wallace,
who nad been around boals
for 4 decade insisted he
dropped Ban and Ohvis off 16
ap cld-style twe masted
3E-AD-foot nmber yach
(ke with brass portholes a
Elue spe on the holl and lots
of Fope work,

Watson's vech: 1528 toct. stes).
homabuilt, has ane mast, no
portholes, no smpe and na
rope work Descnphons kom
Wallace and other waler-1axl
passengers clearly pownt 1o

a larcger yacht that foasted
higher an the watar that
Wasson's Wallace commented
m caurt that the only sunlanty
Letween the o yvachis was

that they bolh fleated

The Erie Bay Trip

Fohce clarmed VWataon ook
Ben and Olvna's bodies o
Cook Blralt on New Years iy
dumpead thermn, then relurmed
1 Drie Bav ana lied albout

tha fime he arrevad The man
who quve Watson the patnt tor
hig boat poliaily said Walson
arrndad batween 1 and
rclday Creer subisecpuen
weeks s sstine of
Viatson's arnval time gradually
changed ol he ana hs
children saud Watson arrpedd
round Spm. A father and son
an an iteristand ferry are the
arly people who clam they
oAy Walson's boat i Coox
Stranl — sbout 4 20pm. Keith
Hunter recteated the trip fom
where hey saw 1l o Erle Bay
It took ters howrs 20 mnmuales,
makangg 1t imsassible for
Walson 5o have arrvvad 1 Elie
Bay befom Tpmoat the pohoe

et e I
o
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Anchors Were Missing
Soon after flans was ' |

taken Ly police a rumour

sirenlated that 3 was found

/ with o gnchors dboard,
/ lhe suggeston being theyd
bieen used to wewgh the

= L | Pt [t T R o - I
mochies doem. Falice refis=d

bo colmment on wheher

Hiage had any dnchors

despite the fact one anchor

was plamby vistble on the

tevedeck whett tha yacht was

geized, Thare wars ansthor

ras ol Ioacd. Boats often

fraveal ikl sl b o
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